SID J. WHITE

APR 1994

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

STEPHEN KEITH,

CASE NO.: 83,208

(DCA No. 92-03037)

Petitioner,

v.

NEWS & SUN SENTINEL COMPANY and CRAWFORD & COMPANY,

Respondents.

INITIAL BRIEF ON THE MERITS ON BEHALF OF PETITIONER, STEPHEN KEITH

ON THE QUESTION CERTIFIED AS OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE FROM THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

> HOWARD S. GROSSMAN, P.A. Attorney for Petitioner

2424 N. Federal Highway, Suite 411

33/431 Boca Raton, Florida

(407) 3**68 /**8048

BY:

HOWARD S. GROSSMAN, ESQUIRE

FLA BAR NO. 454771

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner/Appellant, Stephen Keith, shall be designated as "Petitioner" or "Claimant." The Respondents, News & Sun Sentinel Company, and Crawford & Company, shall be designated as "Respondents" or "Employer." Reference to the Record on Appeal shall be "R" followed by the appropriate page number, all in parentheses ().

STATEMENT OF CERTIFIED QUESTION

- I. Whether, in light of the evolving business relationship between the newspaper publisher and persons delivering the newspaper, the holding in <u>Miami Herald Publishing Company v. Kendall</u>, 88 So.2d 276 (FLA 1956) is still viable?
- A¹. Whether, the Judge of Compensation Claims erred in deciding that the delivery agent, Babapour, was not an employee of the newspaper publisher, the News/Sun Sentinel, and therefore his contemplated employee, the Claimant, a newspaper street vendor, was not an employee of the News/Sun Sentinel?

In order to determine compensability it is necessary to explore the employment relationship between the Petitioner/Claimant and the Respondent/News Sun Sentinel vis-a-vis the delivery agent, Babapour.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On May 1, 1992, a Merits Hearing was held before the Judge of Compensation Claims, Honorable Joseph F. Hand. On August 11, 1992, an Order denying compensability based upon lack of Employer-Employee relationship was entered.

That decision was appealed to the First District Court of Appeal, State of Florida, and that court in its opinion of February 1, 1994, affirmed the Judge of Compensation Claim's denial of compensability, however, certified to the Supreme Court of Florida as a question of great public importance the following:

WHETHER, IN LIGHT OF THE EVOLVING BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN NEWSPAPER PUBLISHERS AND PERSONS DELIVERING NEWSPAPERS, THE HOLDING IN MIAMI HERALD PUBLISHING CO. V. KENDALL, 88 SO.2D 276 (FLA. 1956) REMAINS VIABLE?

On February 11, 1994, the Petitioner served its Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction of the Supreme Court pursuant to Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(v).

This Court served an order dated February 17, 1994 postponing its decision on jurisdiction, however, requesting that Petitioner file a Brief on the Merits.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On September 28, 1990, the Claimant, Stephen Keith, a fortyone (41) year old male, while selling the News/Sun Sentinel
newspapers as a street vendor, was struck by a motor vehicle while
crossing Oakland Park Boulevard at the intersection of North
Andrews Avenue in Fort Lauderdale, Broward County, Florida. (R579)

Dr. Peter F. Merkle, an orthopedic surgeon, treated the Claimant at the emergency room where he diagnosed multiple open fractures of the right tibia and fibula and left shoulder. (R376)

The Claimant remained hospitalized from September 28, 1990 through October 22, 1990, whereupon he was discharged to Sunrise Rehabilitation Hospital.(R379) Since the initial operation on September 28, 1990, the Claimant has undergone surgery on October 4, 1990 to close the wound to his right leg; February 4, 1991 for irrigation and debridement of his leg; April 25, 1991 Dr. Merkle cut out the infected bone and placed the Claimant in an Ilizarov external fixation device which is designed to lengthen the leg. (R380) Finally, on March 17, 1992, the Claimant's Ilizarov device was removed and he was placed into a cast. Dr. Merkle has opined that the Claimant's leg may need to be amputated. (R387) Throughout the Claimant's treatment by Dr. Merkle, he has been unable to work. (R459)

The Claimant testified that he learned that if he wanted to sell the Sun Sentinel newspaper there were two places in Fort Lauderdale where you went to be picked up. (R197) The Claimant testified that he went to the Hess Station at 7th Avenue and Broward Boulevard where he first met Mr. Babapour, a delivery agent for the News/Sun Sentinel. (R197) Mr. Babapour testified that it was well known in the neighborhood that if you wanted to sell newspapers you would come to the Hess Station "because it was on the way from the downtown that we picked up the newspapers and people knew that we would be going through Broward Boulevard." (R51)

After their initial meeting, the Claimant testified that he indicated to Mr. Babapour that he wanted to sell newspapers and Mr. Babapour advised him that he could use him but "I would have to work everyday." (R197) The Claimant did not have his own transportation and therefore he would meet Mr. Babapour at 5:00 a.m., at the Hess Station, so that he could get a ride to work. (R198) Mr. Babapour picked up the Claimant at the Hess Gas Station on Broward Boulevard and 7th Avenue to transport him to the various street vending locations. (R50)

The Claimant had an agreement with Mr. Babapour to sell newspapers to customers, in cars, at a specific intersection, and that he could not move from one corner to another corner. Mr. Babapour would not allow a street vendor to distribute papers by bicycle or some other means of transportation, other than walking up to the customer. (R86-87) The Claimant was also prohibited from selling any other papers besides the News/Sun Sentinel at that street location. (R233) Mr. Babapour prohibited the sale of any other newspapers at his street corners because ". . . to me it is

a conflict of interest." (R48)

The Claimant was advised that he was to adhere to rules, as a street vendor, laid down by Mr. Babapour. That Mr. Babapour would drive around his various locations to check on the safety of the street vendors. (R97) The Claimant had to wear a Sun Sentinel hat, a Sun Sentinel T-shirt, a Sun Sentinel apron, he was not permitted to drink alcoholic beverages on the job, there was to be no fighting, and that he was supposed to clean up his work area. (R211) On one occasion, the Claimant was removed from work by Mr. Babapour's "right hand man" because he had been drinking on the job. (R212-213)

The Claimant further testified that he was advised that there would be people from the Sun Sentinel who would drive around to check up on his performance. The Claimant, in fact, observed Tony Alonzo (the Sun Sentinel's Single Copy Division manager) driving around observing the performance of himself and other street vendors. (R211-212) This was confirmed by Mr. Babapour, as well. (R55-56) During Mr. Alonzo's daily inspections of the street vending sites he would be looking to make sure that the street vendors were not drinking, that they had their shirts on, that there was no trash left at the intersections, and to make sure that the street vendors were out of the street when the traffic light turned green for traffic. (R139)

Mr. Babapour had been contacted by Mr. Alonzo, in the past, to correct situations such as the street vendors were not keeping their locations clean, causing a traffic hazard, or they were

drinking, or they were not wearing a T-shirt. Mr. Babapour also responded that if a street vendor was rude or discourteous to a customer who had driven up, that the Sun Sentinel would be contacted and if it was Mr. Babapour's area, he would receive a call to see what the problem was. (R84)

Mr. Alonzo had previously told Babapour, for safety reasons, not to distribute any papers to that vendor. (R161) According to Mr. Alonzo, the delivery agent can make a decision that the street vendor should be terminated or should not be permitted to sell newspapers. (R163) Once he received the complaint from Mr. Alonzo, Babapour would go to the location and try to rectify the problem. (R140) If the street vendor was drinking, Mr. Babapour would pick up the street vendor's papers and not allow him to sell any further newspapers. (R59)

In order to contact Mr. Babapour, he has a beeper for which the Sun Sentinel has his number ". . . that is basically the only lines of communication if he (Mr. Alonzo) wants to get into touch with me. I am on the road. He has no choice but to beep me." (R83) Prior to the Claimant's date of accident, Mr. Alonzo had on occasion beeped Mr. Babapour to advise him that a street vendor was drunk or causing a traffic hazard or creating a sloppy condition at a street corner. As recently as one day before the Merits Hearing, Mr. Alonzo had called Mr. Babapour's beeper number to advise him that Winn Dixie had called the News/Sun Sentinel and advised that there were newspapers and trash bags all over the premises. (R84)

Mr. Alonzo was asked in the event that Mr. Babapour did not correct a situation, such as failing to have removed a vendor from that location or take away the newspapers "what, if anything, would you have done?" His response was "Well, I would have gotten in touch with him again and asked him why the problem wasn't corrected." (R142) In the event that the delivery agent is not performing the contract pursuant to its terms, the News/Sun Sentinel can rescind the Delivery Agent Agreement. (R182)

Mr. Babapour personally timed each and every street location to determine how long it would take for the traffic light to turn from red to green and visa-versa. Once he had this information, he passed it on to new street vendors (including the Claimant). (R72-73) Mr. Babapour tells the street vendors to time the light before they attempt to sell the newspaper so that they can make sure that they are out of the traffic before the light changes to green. (R74)

The Claimant also learned of this timing technique in safety counsel classes which were offered through the National Safety Counsel, Broward Chapter and paid for by the Sun Sentinel company. Mr. Babapour attended these safety meetings where Mr. Alonzo would also be present. The News/Sun Sentinel received copies of the attendance roster. (R142) On the occasion that the Claimant attended, Mr. Babapour drove him to the meeting. (R70)

Mr. Babapour also tells the street vendors to wait until the rain stops before selling newspapers because of the safety hazard to the vendors and also the lack of customer interest in buying a newspaper when it is raining. (R82)

The Claimant's work day began at the street corner no later than 6:30 a.m. and he worked until 3:30 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. If he left prior to normal quitting time, he was subject to the risk of being fired. (R232) The Claimant knew of instances where Mr. Babapour had fired people because they had left their corners earlier "than what they were supposed to have left their corners and when they had papers that they hadn't sold." (R232) The Claimant worked approximately four days per week. (R215-216) According to Mr. Babapour, the Claimant had worked on and off selling the News/Sun Sentinel for a couple of years prior to his accident. (R49)

If the Claimant repeatedly failed to show up for work he testified that Mr. Babapour had the power to terminate him and tell him not to come back. (R218) When he did miss work, he had a doctor's note from the Clinic and that is why he was never fired. (R218)

The Claimant testified that he believed that Mr. Babapour was a foreman for the Sun Sentinel, and that he (the Claimant) was an employee of the Sun Sentinel. (The Claimant never received any documentation from the Sun Sentinel advising that he was not an employee of their company. (R145)) He based this belief on garments that he had to wear; the cap, the T-shirt and the money bags. That if they did not wear the paraphernalia Mr. Babapour always carried extra garments in case somebody did not bring their clothing.

The T-shirt "'read News/Sun Sentinel' and on the back some of them says [sic] 'Buckle Up It's the Law'." (R61-62)

The shirts were required because of safety reasons. (R64) They are all reflective and most of them glow in the dark. A few times ". . . Mr. Alonzo even came to me (Babapour) with a different color and said which one do you think would be more suitable for the safety factor and I would give him my opinion." (R69)

The News/Sun Sentinel instructs street vendors to wear the shirt so that the vendors can been seen in traffic. (R149) Although there were some hats and shirts without the News/Sun Sentinel logo on them, the vast majority of the shirts had the News/Sun Sentinel logo. (R150-151)

The News/Sun Sentinel charges the delivery agents fifty percent of the actual cost of the hats, shirts, money bags and aprons. The News/Sun Sentinel absorbs the other fifty percent. (R143-144)

The Claimant testified that out of the twenty-five cents that the paper sold for he received twenty cents, plus any tips that he might receive. The remaining five cents went to Mr. Babapour. (R221) The Claimant was not charged for the papers he did not sell.

In order to become a prospective delivery agent, the Sun Sentinel maintains a circulation department telephone number. The Sun Sentinel's secretary would then pass onto Mr. Alonzo the name of the person who desired street vendor delivery sales. (R134) Behrouz Babapour testified that he had been a delivery agent for

the News/Sun Sentinel for approximately ten to eleven years at the time of the Merits Hearing. (R29)

Mr. Babapour testified that he entered into a yearly "Delivery Agent Agreement Single Copy" with the News/Sun Sentinel Company. (R354) At the outset, there were only five to six locations used by the News/Sun Sentinel to distribute newspapers through street vendors. (R29) At the beginning, the locations were supplied by the News/Sun Sentinel. When he first started selling newspapers through the street vendors, Mr. Babapour was selling about two-hundred and fifty (250) copies per day. (R34) On the date of the Claimant's accident, there were fifty corners at which Mr. Babapour had delivered newspapers to and for which fifty street vendors were working with him. (R43)

Mr. Babapour would go to the Fort Lauderdale location where the papers were printed, pick up the main section of the newspaper, and then drive to a warehouse, maintained by the News/Sun Sentinel to pick up the inserts. (R35) Once he received all of the papers, Mr. Babapour would head on I-95 proceed to his first drop off point, and then continue on to each of his street corners where the papers were sold. (R37) He was required by the terms of the Agreement to deliver a complete, fully inserted copy of the newspaper no later than 6:30 a.m., to the actual street location. (R40) It would be a breach of the delivery agreement if he did not deliver the papers in a timely fashion. (R186)

Mr. Babapour agreed, by virtue of the Delivery Agent Agreement, to provide to the News/Sun Sentinel a list of each and

every location where he sold the News/Sun Sentinel papers. In fact, each week he used a Sun Sentinel provided form indicating the total number of papers he sold, where he sold them, and the amount he sold at each location. (R39, R358-370)

In the event that Mr. Babapour fails to sell all of the newspapers, he returns them to Mr. Alonzo, who in turn checks to see that its fully returned, and credits Mr. Babapour for all unsold papers. (R79) All unsold papers go to a recycling plant. (R133)

Mr. Babapour explained the pay arrangement with the Sun Sentinel. On the bill that he received from the News/Sun Sentinel he was charged twelve cents per paper. On the same bill he was credited ten cents back for delivering the paper, therefore, he paid the News/Sun Sentinel two cents per paper. He collected five cents from the street vendors for each paper sold. Two cents would go to the company and he would keep three cents. (R76)

In September, 1990, Babapour was delivering eight thousand (8,000) newspapers per day. At three cents a paper he was earning \$240.00 gross per day. On Sundays, he received twenty five cents for his delivery collection fee per paper, selling approximately five thousand newspapers. Thus, he would earn \$1,250.00 for Sunday, alone. (R77) At that rate, he earned \$127,400.00 per year. (no Saturday delivery)

At the time of the Claimant's accident, Mr. Babapour had every street vendor, prior to allowing them to sell the newspaper, sign an insurance enrollment card. (R115, 350) (See, R350-351 for

copies of the insurance rejection card and insurance enrollment card) Mr. Babapour received these cards at the News/Sun Sentinel warehouse from the Sun Sentinel. (R47) Once the enrollment cards were signed, Mr. Babapour testified that he turned it in to the insurance company by ". . . give [ing] it to my manager at the time, because we don't go to the main office all of the time. We are out in the field." (R80) Mr. Babapour testified that his manager (at the time the Claimant signed his enrollment card) was Larry Roy. Mr. Roy worked for the Sun Sentinel. (R50)

Mr. Babapour is automatically charged for the "accident insurance" on his paper bill (\$1.30 per vendor) and the News/Sun Sentinel in turn reimburses the insurance carrier for the coverage. (R76,47) Babapour would tell the street vendors that he is paying for it and that if they get into an accident "they're covered." (R118-119) The insurance paid for by the delivery agents provided coverage in the event that "if a person is lifting a bundle of newspapers and he pulls (hit)[sic] his back or he twists his ankle or for any unforeseen reason when they are putting the newspapers together or while they are distributing them, it is an accident insurance policy. . . " (R147)

Mr. Babapour never told the Claimant that he did not have Workers' Compensation coverage in existence. The only insurance Babapour had was vehicle insurance for his truck. (R120) The News/Sun Sentinel through Mr. Alonzo never instructed Mr. Babapour, either orally or in writing, that he, in turn, should instruct the street vendors as to the purposes behind the accidental insurance.

Nor, did he ever tell Mr. Babapour to instruct the street vendors that even though they were wearing the shirt, the hat, the money bag and the belt that bore the News/Sun Sentinel's name that they were not Sun Sentinel employees. (R145) Mr. Babapour never discussed, nor was he advised in writing by the Sun Sentinel, per the delivery agreement, whether or not the Sun Sentinel was providing Workers' Compensation coverage. (R122)

Mr. Babapour had previously referred to Mr. Alonzo as his supervisor.

I am sure that I have said it. He is my supervisor. He is the supervisor that oversees operations . . . and if I run out of the running list, I asked him to give me a pad. You know, things that we need. And he also he drives around, as I said, and if somebody doesn't have a shirt, he would call me, or if somebody is drinking, as you said, or the papers are blowing all over the street and making it hazardous of (sic) [to] the drivers he would call me to take care of the situation. (R61)

- Mr. Alonzo testified in response to the following question:
- "Q. At page 21 of your deposition, I asked you: Is there any supervision or is there any way that you can know if Mr. Babapour is doing a good enough job such that it is worth having Mr. Babapour as a contractor?"
- "A. At line 10: Oh, sure. What I would do is I would spend time daily driving through intersections making sure each vendor has a shirt, had an apron on for safety reasons, making sure that he is out of the street when the light turns green. Basically I just oversee the safety aspect of it." (R175, lines 10-22)

Mr. Alonzo, examined the street vendor's sales reports provided by the delivery agent to predict how many papers would be necessary for each day. (R129-130) Mr. Alonzo then communicated this information to Mr. Babapour so that he would have an idea of how many papers he needed to deliver on an daily basis. On those

days where the delivery agent exceeds three percent unsold papers, Mr. Alonzo discusses the overage in an attempt to reduce the gap between expected sales and actual sales. (R135) Mr. Babapour, in turn, discusses the quantity of sales with street vendors if they are not selling enough papers. ". . . I have been telling people that, listen so-and-so was working that location and he sold so many more papers. Is there a problem? What is your problem? You know, I would like to know why." (R94-95)

The decision on the amount of papers to be distributed is mutual, based on the information that the delivery agents have, along with the information that the Sun Sentinel receives concerning late breaking news. (R134-135)

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