ILED SID J. WHITE

MAY 24 1994

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

CLE By\_

Chief Deputy Clark

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 83,208 DCA #: 92-03037 Fla. Bar No.: 710482

STEPHEN KEITH,

Appellant,

vs.

NEWS & SUN SENTINEL COMPANY and CRAWFORD & COMPANY,

Appellees.

## ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS ON BEHALF OF THE RESPONDENTS, NEWS & SUN SENTINEL COMPANY AND CRAWFORD & COMPANY

PYSZKA, KESSLER, MASSEY, WELDON, CATRI, HOLTON & DOUBERLEY, P.A. The 110 Tower, 20th Floor 110 Southeast Sixth Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301-5015 (305) 463-8593

BY: EDWARD D. SCHUSTER, ESQUIRE

EDS:bsl May 23, 1994 BC-10843-M

1 . 1

####

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

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

This Court should decline to answer the certified question raised by the First District Court of Appeal. This is because the question was never passed upon by the First District Court of Appeal and therefore, cannot be Constitutionally considered by this Court as a question of great public importance. Further, the Miami Herald Publishing Co. v. Kendall decision is not outmoded. It applies to the very same principles for which the Petitioner contends should apply to the case at bar. The Restatement of Agency Factors found in §220 of that treatise has been applied in numerous decisions of the courts of this State to determine the status of whether one is an employer or an independent contractor. There is no need to abandon Stare Decisis since the Petitioner has has not presented any reasons to do so and accordingly, the Court should decline to accept jurisdiction or otherwise, it should reaffirm the Miami Herald Publishing Co. v. Kendall decision.

If the Court decides to re-examine the <u>Miami Herald Publishing</u> <u>Co. v. Kendall</u> decision, and also intends to examine the underlying decisions on the merits at bar, the decisions of the lower tribunals should be affirmed. Competent, substantial evidence supports those tribunal's findings that there is neither a direct, nor an indirect, employer/employee relationship between the Sun Sentinel and Stephen Keith.

#### ARGUMENT

I. IN LIGHT OF THE EVOLVING WHETHER, RELATIONSHIP BUSINESS BETWEEN NEWSPAPER PUBLISHERS AND PERSONS DELIVERING NEWSPAPERS, THE HOLDING IN MIAMI HERALD PUBLISHING CO. v. 88 So.2d 276 (Fla. 1966) REMAINS KENDALL, VIABLE.

## Introduction

The question certified by the First District Court of Appeal must be answered in the affirmative. This Court in <u>Miami Herald</u> <u>Publishing Co v. Kendall</u> applied the identical legal principles applied today by Florida courts to define the legal relationship between parties to a contract as being that of either employer/employee, or that of an independent contractor performing services pursuant to a contract. The <u>Miami Herald</u> decision applied the principles found in the Restatement of Agency in determining that the newsboy was an independent contractor. The Court also focused on the degree of control exercised by the <u>Miami Herald</u> as the heaviest factor to be weighed. Keith has made no showing why this Court should depart from the application of these factors, disregard Stare Decisis, and reject the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision and the principles contained in it.

Nothing about the facts of this case or the decision of the lower tribunals based upon the facts compels a departure from the application of the Restatement of Agency or the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision to the case at bar. Keith cites no authorities, legal principles, or circumstances that compel rejection of precedent that has become woven into Florida's legal fabric. Accordingly, this Court should decline to exercise its discretion to review the

certified question.

# The instant case is not in a constitutional posture sufficient to allow review of the certified question.

As a threshold consideration, while the First District Court followed the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision, it did <u>not pass upon</u> the viability of the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision. In other words, the First District did not hold that the decision was outmoded. Further, neither does the decision in <u>Fort Pierce Tribune v. Williams</u>, 622 So.2d 1368 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993) pass upon the viability of the <u>Miami</u> <u>Herald</u> decision. Indeed, it does not even cite it in its ruling. Instead, it cites, <u>City of Port St. Lucie v. Chambers</u>, 667 So.2d 450 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992) rev. den. 618 So.2d 208 (Fla. 1992). Since there is no indication that the Court passed upon the question in the case at bar, or even in <u>Ft. Pierce</u>, the certified question should not be considered by this Court. Art. 5, §3(b)(4) Fla. Const. (1980); <u>Revitz v. Baya</u>, 355 So.2d 1170, 1171(Fla. 1970).

## The Merits of the Certified Question

The <u>Miami Herald</u> decision is viable and should not be discarded. If it is determined that the District Court passed upon the question certified, Keith has wholly failed to demonstrate the need to depart from the principles announced in the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision. The <u>Miami Herald</u> decision remains as viable as it did the day it was decided.

In <u>Miami Herald</u>, this Court was confronted with an appeal from a jury verdict in Mary Kendall's favor against the Miami Herald. The jury awarded the verdict to Mrs. Kendall for injuries she sustained in a collision with a motorcycle being operated by a

newspaper delivery person named Molesworth, 88 So.2d at 276. This Court was confronted with the issue of whether the delivery person was an independent contractor, in which case the Miami Herald would not be liable for the injuries that were occasioned due to the collision or whether the delivery person was an employee for which the Miami Herald could be vicariously liable. <u>Miami Herald</u>, Id. at 277.

The Court conducted its analysis by examining the delivery contract in which it was stated that the delivery person was an independent contractor. As in the instant case, the contract stated that the newspaper exercised no control over the <u>delivery</u> of the newspaper. Id. This Court examined the contractual provisions regarding the delivery of newspapers to the delivery person, the territory for delivery, and the method of payment. Id. The Court then cited to is prior decision Florida Publishing Company v. Lourcey, 141 Fla. 767, 193 So. 847 (1940), which was cited by the Miami Herald, and focused upon whether the Miami Herald controlled the means by which the task is accomplished. This Court then quoted from the Florida Publishing decision which analyzed the contractual agreement between Newspaper and the delivery person in that case, which led the Court to find that the delivery person was an independent contractor. Id.

Thereafter, the <u>Miami Herald</u> Court engaged in a meticulous review of the extra-contractual evidence which had a bearing on the control over the manner of the performance of the services secured by the publisher. 88 So.2d 279. The Court examined the testimony

concerning the actual degree of supervision, or lack thereof. <u>Id.</u> at 279. The Court reached the conclusion that the extra contractual activities of the parties did not: "...neutralize the provisions of the agreement which to us were obviously intended to make Molesworth an independent contractor." <u>Id.</u> Of extreme importance is the fact that the Court noted that <u>each case turns on</u> <u>its own set of facts</u> on the issue of whether an individual is an independent contractor or an employee. <u>Id.</u>

Next, the <u>Restatement of the Law of Agency</u>, §220 (a-i) was applied to the facts of the case. The Court then decided that the delivery person, Molesworth, was an independent contractor.

The Restatement Principles utilized in the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision and the determination that the amount of control reserved by the party securing the services is the fact that should be given the most weight, has been employed in numerous tort cases and in worker's compensation cases as well.<sup>2</sup> This long history of the

Representative cases that have employed or discussed the 2. Restatement factors when determining the existence or non-existence of an employment relationship are: Magarian v. Southern Fruit <u>Distributors</u>, 146 Fla. 773, 1 So.2d 858 (1941); <u>Peterson v.</u> <u>Highland Crate Co-op</u>, 156 Fla. 539, 23 So.2d 716 (1945); <u>Farmers</u> and Merchants Bank v. Bocelle, 106 So.2d 92 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1958); Bassell v. Al Landers Dump Trucks, Inc., 148 So.2d 298 (Fla. 3d DCA 1963)cert.den. 155 So.2d 148 (Fla. 1963); Gregg v. Weller Grocery Co., 151 So.2d 450 (Fla. 3d DCA 1963); formally approved by this Court in Cantor v. Cochran, 184 So.2d 173 (Fla. 1966); Stevens v. International Builders of Florida, Inc., 207 So.2d 287 (Fla. 3d DCA 1968) cert.dis: 217 So.2d 101 (Fla. 1968); Foster v. Lee, 226 So.2d 282 (Fla. 2d DCA 1969); Justice v. Bellford Trucking Company, Inc., 272 So.2d 131 (Fla. 1972); Bass v. Florida Department of Labor and Employment Security, 399 So.2d 62 (Fla. 3d DCA 1981); Moles v. Gotti, 433 So.2d 1380 (Fla. 2d DCA 1983); Hilldrup Transfer and Storage of New Smyrna Beach, Inc. v. State Department of Labor and Security Division of Employment, 447 So.2d 414 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984); VIP Toys of Orlando, Inc. v. State, Department of Labor and

application of the Restatement of Agency factors need not be reexamined. The most obvious reason for this is that Keith's analysis employs the very Reinstatement analysis applied by this Court in the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision. In essence, Keith merely argues that the <u>result</u> should be different. Indeed, there is no argument from Keith that the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision is no longer viable. Instead, Keith applies those very factors to his own case as approved by this Court's decision <u>Cantor v. Cochran</u>, 184 So.2d 173 (Fla. 1963), and utilized in <u>Magarian v. Southern Fruit</u> <u>Distributors</u>, 146 Fla. 772, 1 So.2d 858 (1941). Respectfully, reliance upon the restatement factors by Keith is a clear demonstration that the principles applied in the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision are still viable.

4

In fact, common law principles have been employed to determine

Employment Security Division of Employment Security, 449 So.2d 1307 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984); D.O. Creasman Electronics, Inc. v. State Department of Labor and Employment Security, Division of Unemployment Compensation, 458 So.2d 894 (Fla. 2d DCA 1984); Strickland v. Progressive American Insurance Company, 468 So.2d 525 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985); Carroll v. Kencher, Inc., 491 So.2d 1311 (Fla. 4th DCA 1986); Messer v. Department of Labor and Employment Security, 500 So.2d 1372 (Fla. 5th DCA 1987); Singer v. Starr, 510 So.2d 637 (Fla. 4th DCA 1987); F.L. Enterprises, Inc. v. Unemployment Appeals Commission, 515 So.2d 1340 (Fla. 5th DCA 1987); Robison by and through Bugera v. Faine, 525 So.2d 903 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987); Delco Industries, Inc. v. State, Department of Labor and Employment Security, 519 So.2d 1109 (Fla. 4th DCA 1988); Global Home Care, Inc. v. State, Department of Labor and Employment Security, 521 So.2d 220 (Fla. 2d DCA 1988); Wiseman v. Miami Rug <u>Company</u>, 524 So.2d 726 (Fla. 4th DCA 1988); <u>Zubi</u> Advertising Services, Inc. v. State, Department of Labor and Unemployment Security, 537 So.2d 145 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989); Edwards v. Caulfield, 560 So.2d 364 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990); Alexander v. Morton, 595 So.2d 1015 (Fla. 2d DCA 1992); Dart Industries, Inc. v. Department of Labor and Employment Security, 596 So.2d 725 (Fla. 5th DCA 1992); and F.T. Blunt Funeral Home v. City of Tampa, 627 So.2d 1272 (Fla.1st DCA 1993).

whether one is an independent contractor or an employee in worker's compensation cases. The First District Court of Appeals has held that the criteria for determining whether the contractee is an independent contractor or an employee is the same whether in worker's compensation or under the common law. <u>Pearson v. Harris</u>, 449 So.2d 339 341-342 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984).

Moreover, Keith failed to state any reason why the Miami Herald decision is no longer viable except to argue that the decision is colored by a historical prospective on capitalism that no longer exists in today's world. This is clearly not a valid reason to overturn precedent. This is so especially where no evidence exists to show that a vast change in the business relationship actually has occurred other than the mere passage of time. Some of the obiter dicta in the decision may be colored by the Justice's view of the world. Yet, the legal principles actually applied by the Court to the evidence before it to reach its conclusion are manifestly applicable to today. In fact, Keith does not assert that the Restatement of Agency Principles should not apply to the instant case -- he just quarrels with the result. However, this Court will not disturb the factual findings unless there is no competent substantial evidence to support the Judge's determination. Adams v. Wagner, 129 So.2d 129, 130-131 (Fla. 1961). There is no need to depart from the principles employed in the Miami Herald decision and in other decisions of this State.

Keith next assails the "Newspaper Industry" and states that it "hangs its hat" on the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision (Keith's brief at

p.16). From there, he quotes a phrase out of the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision in an apparent effort to demonstrate that the decision is no longer viable. Keith argues that the <u>facts</u> of the instant case are distinguishable, but offers no reason other than age to support a departure from the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision. Keith's brief at p.17-19. Even assuming arguendo that the facts are distinguishable, the existence of distinguishable facts has never been a sufficient legal ground to discard 38 years of precedent. The <u>Miami Herald</u> decision recognized that each case turns on its own facts. And, the fact that the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision is a tort case is not a basis to distinguish its applicability to the facts at bar. <u>Pearson v. Harris, supra</u>.

On pages 19-20 of his brief, Keith quotes at length from Walker v. Palm Beach Newspapers, Inc., 561 So.2d 1198 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990) rev.dism. 576 So.2d 294 (Fla. 1990) and apparently argues that Judge Sharp's special concurrence supports a departure from the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision. Respectfully, Judge Sharp's concurrence places a spotlight directly upon the chink in the armor of her analysis, and in Keith's argument. The flaw is that this Court in Miami Herald the decision concluded that newsboys were presumptively independent contractors. No such presumption was exercised by this Court in Miami Herald. Instead, a great deal of factual analysis was employed by the Court and the analysis occurred within the framework of the Restatement of Agency. Pointedly, this Court stated that the facts peculiar to each case governs the determination whether one is an independent contractor

or an employee. <u>Miami Herald</u>, <u>supra</u>, at 279. The focus at bar should not be on a phrase or two in the Miami Herald decision which may be reflective of the times or the view of a particular Justice. Instead, the focus should be on the legal principles applied in the case.

Keith next turns to Judge Barfield's concurrence in <u>City of</u> <u>Port St. Lucie v. Chambers</u>, 606 So.2d 450 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992); rev. den., 618 So.2d 208 (Fla. 1993). Again, and respectfully, Judge Barfield begins at the same point of embarkation as Judge Sharp by somehow reading the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision as holding that presumptively, all newspaper delivery persons are independent contractors. This is a misreading of the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision since it requires each case to be decided on its own facts.

Keith cites to Larson's treatise on worker's compensation law and to Evansville v. Sugg, 817 S.W.2d 455 (Ky. Ct. App. 1991) in support of his contention that there is a trend away from finding newspaper delivery persons to be independent contractors in other states. <u>Sugg</u> is unsupportive of Keith's contention here because that decision is based upon a worker's compensation statute which required regular deliverers of newspapers to be covered by worker's compensation insurance. The record at bar reveals that Keith was certainly not a regular seller of newspapers. Additionally, numerous states have recently held that newspaper delivery persons are independent contractors. <u>Venango Newspapers v. Unemployment</u> <u>Compensation Board of Review</u>, 631 A.2d 1384 (Pa. Cmwlth. 1993); <u>La</u> <u>Fleur v. La Fleur</u>, 452 N.W.2d 406 (Towa 1990); <u>Cable v. Perkins</u>,

121 Ill. App. 3d 127, 459 M.E. 2d 257 (1984); and <u>Richman</u> <u>Newspapers Inc. v. Gill</u>, 294 S.E.2d 840 (Va. 1982).

In sum, Keith has presented no cogent reason for abandoning the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision. Indeed, he presents no authority which guides this Court as to when, and whether, established precedent may be discarded. The principles applied by this Court in the <u>Miami Herald</u> decision are still utilized today as the standard in measuring whether a given set of facts indicate that one is an employee or an independent contractor. Accordingly, the <u>Miami</u> <u>Herald</u> decision should not be re-examined or discarded. II. THE JUDGE OF COMPENSATION CLAIMS CORRECTLY FOUND THAT THE DELIVERY AGENT, BABAPOUR, IS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR OF THE SUN SENTINEL FOR THE PURPOSE OF DELIVERING NEWSPAPERS.

## A. Introduction

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